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A signed copy of this Amendment shall be submitted with the Offeror’s Proposal.  
 
This Amendment will be posted to the Bidders Library: https://azahcccs.gov/PlansProviders/HealthPlans/YH24-
0001.html. 

  
This Solicitation is amended as follows:  
A. The attached Answers to Questions are incorporated as part of this Amendment. 
B. This Solicitation is also amended as follows:  

SECTION YH24-0001 AMENDMENT 

Exhibit A:  Offeror’s Checklist 

 
 

OFFEROR HEREBY ACKNOWLEDGES RECEIPT 
AND UNDERSTANDING OF THIS SOLICITATION 
AMENDMENT. 

THIS SOLICITATION AMENDMENT IS HEREBY EXECUTED ON THIS 
DAY IN PHOENIX, AZ. 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL: SIGNATURE:  
SIGNATURE ON FILE 

TYPED NAME: TYPED NAME:   
MEGGAN LAPORTE, CPPO, MSW 

TITLE:                          TITLE:   
CHIEF PROCUREMENT OFFICER 

DATE: DATE:                   
 

 

SOLICITATION AMENDMENT #2 

SOLICITATION #: 
 

YH24-0001 
ALTCS E/PD RFP 

SOLICITATION DUE DATE: 
 

OCTOBER 2, 2023 
3:00 PM ARIZONA TIME 

 

PROCUREMENT OFFICER:  
 

MEGGAN LAPORTE 
RFPYH24-0001@AZAHCCCS.GOV 

https://azahcccs.gov/PlansProviders/HealthPlans/YH24-0001.html
https://azahcccs.gov/PlansProviders/HealthPlans/YH24-0001.html
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

1. N/A August 22, 2023  Exhibit H, B11 N/A - What year D-SNP STAR 
rating should be reported 
by the Offeror? 

RFP B11 is revised as shown below: 
The Offeror shall submit its most recent 
2023 AZ Medicaid Plan D-SNP STAR rating. 
If the Offeror does not have a D-SNP STAR 
Rating in Arizona, the Offeror shall cite its 
most recent 2023 STAR rating with the 
corresponding Medicare Contract Number, 
from one of the states for the Medicaid 
contracts cited in Submission Requirement 
B2, using the preference order detailed 
below. 
 
Preference order for STAR Rating from 
another State:  
a. FIDE SNP/DSNP Plan,  
b. Another type of SNP, or  
c. Medicare Advantage Plan. 
 

2. N/A August 23, 2023  Section H, Part C, 
Cost Bid 

N/A - The Capitation Agreement 
(C1) does not appear to 
include the accurate  
Underwriting gain for CYE24. 
Additionally, the Capitation 
Agreement (C1) 
requirements do not 
stipulate if/how an Offeror 
should account for moral or 
religious obligations. 

Section H Instructions to Offerors C1 is 
revised as follows:  
C1 -  Agreement to Accept Capitation Rates: 
The Offeror shall submit an agreement that 
the Offeror will accept the actuarially 
sound capitation rates computed prior to 
October 1, 2024.  The agreement shall be 
signed by the Offeror’s Chief Executive 
Officer.  This is a required submission.   
 
For the CYE 24 rating period, AHCCCS set 
the ALTCS-EPD underwriting gain 
percentage equal to 1.45% of the 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

capitation rates, excluding premium tax. 
AHCCCS may revise the applicable 
underwriting gain percentage as part of 
capitation rate development each year. 
AHCCCS intends to set the underwriting 
gain equal to one percent of the capitation 
rate for each risk group excluding premium 
tax.   
 
Administrative and case management cost 
components will be bid by the Offerors. 
AHCCCS may use these bids in developing 
capitation rates; however, AHCCCS reserves 
the right to adjust the capitation rates, 
including the administrative and case 
management cost components, to maintain 
compliance with the Medicaid and CHIP 
Managed Care Final Rule and additional 
guidance from CMS published annually in 
the Medicaid Managed Care Rate 
Development Guides.  
 
If any moral or religious objections were 
submitted as part of the RFP, the Offeror 
shall include in its Capitation Agreement a 
statement attesting that the Offeror did 
not exclude from the administrative and 
case management bid submission(s) any 
related administrative and case 
management costs. 
 



 

RFP YH24-0001 − Page 4 of 13 
 

RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

3. UnitedHealthcare 
Community Plan 

August 22, 2023  Section I, Exhibit 
H 

B2 1 Given the current 
requirement for all 
incumbent ALTCS 
Contractors to offer a 
FIDE-SNP under a SMAC 
with AHCCCS, please 
confirm that offerors may 
write to the companion 
FIDE-SNP experience and 
best practices in their 
response under their 
current AHCCCS Medicaid 
contract number and need 
not separately list their 
companion FIDE-SNP 
agreement in response to 
B2. 

The Offeror must list the FIDE-SNP in B2 if 
the Offeror writes to experience related to 
the FIDE-SNP contract. 

4. UnitedHealthcare 
Community Plan 

August 22, 2023   Section H B12 19  If an oral presentation 
participant identified in 
our response becomes 
unavailable to attend, may 
we substitute another 
individual after our 
proposal is submitted? 

Yes, if an oral presentation participant 
becomes unavailable another individual 
may be substituted; however, the 
information for the newly added 
individual must be submitted to AHCCCS 
(i.e., name, title, and resume) as required 
by the RFP. 

5. UnitedHealthcare 
Community Plan 

August 22, 2023   Section H N/A N/A The RFP does not specify 
whether AHCCCS will 
accept electronic or digital 
signatures. Please confirm 
that AHCCCS will accept a 
digital or electronically 
placed signature in place 

Yes, AHCCCS will accept a 
digital/electronically placed signature in 
place of a written signature for RFP 
documents requiring signature. 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

of a written signature for 
all documents requiring 
signature. 

6. Arizona 
Complete Health 

 8/22/23 Section I: Exhibits 
Exhibit H 

B7   3 Please advise if the action 
steps and timeline for the 
first three years of the 
contract begin on 
execution of the contract 
or contract go-live, I.e., 
Day One of member 
coverage.  

In reference to B7 submission requirement 
where it states: “Provide action steps and 
a timeline for the first three years of the 
Contract, along with measurable 
outcomes to be achieved,”  the action 
steps should focus on the contract start 
(execution) date. 

7. Arizona 
Complete Health 

  8/22/23 Section D: 
Program 
Requirements   

3  83 As a response to the first 
round of questions, in 
Amendment 1, AHCCCS 
made the following 
revisions:  
Habilitation: A service 
encompassing the 
provision of training in 
independent living skills or 
special developmental 
skills, sensory motor 
development, orientation, 
and mobility, and 
behavior intervention. 
Physical, occupational, or 
speech therapies may be 
provided as a part of or in 
conjunction with other 
habilitation services. This 
includes habilitation 

AHCCCS suggests the Offeror refer to 
AHCCCS policies and other materials as 
needed. 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

services such as Day 
Treatment and Training 
(also known as day 
program) for persons with 
disabilities and Supported 
Employment. 
 
The phrase “such as” 
implies that Supported 
Employment is just one 
example.  What other 
types of habilitation will 
be included beyond 
Supported Employment? 

8. Arizona 
Complete Health 

8/22/23 Section D: 
Program 
Requirements   

11 60 Does your policy allow for 
an ALTCS Tribal Member 
that lives on a reservation 
to be served by a non-
Tribal ALTCS Contractor? 

No, per A.A.C. R9-28-415 Tribal members 
living on-reservation shall be enrolled with 
the tribe participating as an ALTCS Tribal 
program in the member's service area. 

9. Arizona 
Complete Health 

  8/22/23 Non-Benefit Costs 
Bid 
Requirements/Su
bmission 

N/A N/A  In response to 
Amendment 1 Questions 
and Responses Number 9, 
AHCCCS stated they “may 
incorporate underlying 
cost differences in the 
populations between 
GSAs when determining 
the overall distribution, if 
such an adjustment is 
appropriate.” What about 
adjusting the overall total 

AHCCCS does not intend to adjust the 
overall total administrative cost bid itself 
as described in this question. If an Offeror 
believes that their admin costs would be 
impacted by being awarded a different 
GSA combo, they are welcome to include 
additional detail in their actuarial 
certification of the administrative rates. 
Offerors should bid based on their 
projected administrative need, whatever 
the Offeror determines that to be.  
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

administrative cost bid 
itself? For example, the 
PMPM for 100,000 
member months is likely 
to be different for the 
Central + South GSAs vs 
the Central + North GSAs. 
An Offeror would likely 
bid differently under 
those two scenarios. How 
does AHCCCS intend to 
adjust for this situation?  

10. Arizona 
Complete Health 

   8/22/23 Section I: Exhibits 
Exhibit H 

 B2  1 The RFP submission 
requirement was revised 
as follows: The Offeror 
shall identify no more 
than three contracts in 
addition to Arizona 
Medicaid contracts, which 
represents its experience 
in managing similar 
healthcare delivery 
systems to the ALTCS E/PD 
Program. Given the one-
page length and design of 
the form submission is it 
the intent of AHCCCS for 
bidders to not include AZ 
information, and only 
include that of three 
contracts which represent 

The Offeror shall list only the three 
contracts that are not Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts that it wishes to cite throughout 
its RFP response; the Offeror does not 
need to include Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts in its list. 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

its experience in managing 
similar healthcare delivery 
systems, or will AHCCCS 
provide a new form?  

11. Mercy Care  08/22/2023 Section I, Exhibit 
H, B2 

 B2 1 The current B2 template 
allows for only three 
contracts to be cited. 
Amendment 1 infers that 
more than three contracts 
may be cited – Arizona 
contracts and other state 
contracts. Please provide 
clarification if Offerors can 
list all Arizona contracts 
and up to three additional 
non-Arizona contracts. If 
so, will a new B2 template 
be provided? If not, please 
clarify which contracts and 
how many are to be cited 
in the B2 template. 

The Offeror shall list only the three 
contracts that are not Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts that it wishes to cite throughout 
its RFP response; the Offeror does not 
need to include Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts in its list. 

12. Mercy Care  08/22/2023 Section I, Exhibit 
H, B2 

 B2 1 Please confirm that, in 
response to B2, Offerors 
may cite data and 
experience of other plans 
also administered by 
Offeror’s administrator. 

Any experience cited must be related to one of 
the three contracts listed, or Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts.  
 

13. Mercy Care  08/22/2023 Section I, Exhibit 
A, Offeror’s 
Checklist and 

   1 and 
3 

Please clarify the page 
limit requirement for 
narrative submission 
question B7. Section I, 

The page limit for B7 is 4 pages. The RFP 
Offeror’s Checklist is revised to indicate a 
4-page limit for item B7. The Offeror’s 
Checklist will also be reposted to the 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

Section I, Exhibit 
H, B7 

Exhibit A, Offeror’s 
Checklist indicates 5 pages 
and Section I, Exhibit H, B7 
indicates 4 pages.  

Bidders’ Library with the post of this RFP 
Amendment with this correction included. 
 
 

14. BCBSAZ Health 
Choice 

8/22/2023 B2   Thank you for the 
response to our questions 
regarding B2. Based on 
the revised language of 
the Narrative Submission 
Requirement, is an Offeror 
required to identify and 
describe their Arizona 
Medicaid contracts (both 
active and inactive) plus 
allowed to identify and 
describe up to three 
additional non-Arizona 
Medicaid contracts within 
the prescribed one-page 
limit? Or, instead, is the 
Offeror expected to 
identify and describe only 
the three additional non-
Arizona Medicaid 
contracts (but the Offeror 
is allowed to cite and 
receive credit for their 
Arizona Medicaid 
experience in other 
narratives without 

The Offeror shall list only the three 
contracts that are not Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts that it wishes to cite throughout 
its RFP response; the Offeror does not 
need to include Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts in its list. 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

identifying and describing 
them in B2)? 

15. BCBSAZ Health 
Choice 

8/22/2023 B2   If the answer to the 
previous question is that 
Arizona Medicaid 
contracts must be 
identified and described, 
please clarify whether 
each Medicaid contract 
number is considered a 
separate contract, i.e., 
each individual contract 
number represents one of 
the three contract limit 
(e.g., ACC Contract YH19-
0001 and Acute Care 
Contract YH14-0001 = 2 
contracts) or whether 
continuing contracts are 
considered as one 
contract (e.g., ACC 
Contract YH19-0001 and 
Acute Care Contract YH14-
0001 = 1 contract). 

The Offeror shall list only the three 
contracts that are not Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts that it wishes to cite throughout 
its RFP response; the Offeror does not 
need to include Arizona Medicaid 
Contracts in its list. 

16. BCBSAZ Health 
Choice 

 8/22/2023 B2   Is an incumbent AHCCCS 
contractor’s affiliated 
DSNP contract considered 
an “Arizona Medicaid 
contract” or should the 
DSNP be identified and 
described as one of the 

The Offeror must list the affiliated DSNP 
contract in B2 if the Offeror writes to 
experience related to the DSNP contract. 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

three additional non-
Arizona Medicaid 
contracts? 

17. Banner-University 
Care Advantage 
dba Banner-
University Family 
Care 

August 22, 2023  Part B, B11 Exhibit H, 
Narrative 
Submission 
Requirements, 
B11 

Exhibit 
H, Page 
5, and 
Page 18 
in the 
Instructi
ons to 
Offerors  

Given that projected STAR 
ratings for measurement 
year 2022 have been 
released, and the final 
ratings will be released in 
early October, would 
AHCCCS consider accepting 
the 2022 projected STAR 
ratings for B11, and validate 
the STAR rating using 
publicly available 
information? This would 
ensure the most current data 
is utilized.  

RFP B11 is revised as shown below: 
The Offeror shall submit its most recent 
2023 AZ Medicaid Plan D-SNP STAR rating. 
If the Offeror does not have a D-SNP STAR 
Rating in Arizona, the Offeror shall cite its 
most recent 2023 STAR rating with the 
corresponding Medicare Contract Number, 
from one of the states for the Medicaid 
contracts cited in Submission Requirement 
B2, using the preference order detailed 
below. 
 
Preference order for STAR Rating from 
another State:  
a. FIDE SNP/DSNP Plan,  
b. Another type of SNP, or  
c. Medicare Advantage Plan. 

18. Banner-University 
Care Advantage 
dba Banner-
University Family 
Care 

August 22, 2023 Exhibit H: Narrative 
Submission 
Requirement   

Exhibit H, 
Narrative 
Submission 
Requirements, 
B6 

 3 Given the number of 
questions and size of 
utilization reports necessary 
to answer B6, would AHCCCS 
consider allowing Offerors to 
submit utilization reports as 
3 attachments rather than 3 
one-page screen shots of 
reports, which may be more 
difficult to read? 

The requirements for submitting sample 
reports for B6 will remain unchanged. 
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RFP #YH24-0001 QUESTIONS AND RESPONSES TEMPLATE 

# OFFEROR’S 
NAME 

DATE OF 
SUBMISSION RFP SECTION PARAGRAPH 

NO. 
PAGE 
NO. OFFEROR’S QUESTION AHCCCS RESPONSE 

19. Banner-University 
Care Advantage 
dba Banner-
University Family 
Care 

 August 22, 2023 Section H: 
Instructions to 
Offerors  

Instructions 
Section 19. 
Contents of 
Offeror’s 
Proposal, 
related to 
Exhibit H: B7 

 14 The instructions indicate that 
the submission be provided 
in 8 ½” x 11” page size. 
Would AHCCCS allow an 8 ½” 
x 11” page in landscape 
orientation to be used for 
the action steps and timeline 
portion of B7?    

Yes. 



 
SECTION I:  EXHIBITS  
EXHIBIT A: OFFEROR’S CHECKLIST    RFP NO. YH24-0001 
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EXHIBIT A: OFFEROR’S CHECKLIST 
The Offeror shall complete and submit the Offeror’s Checklist as the initial pages of the Proposal. It is 

the Offeror’s responsibility to ensure it has submitted all requirements in the RFP notwithstanding the 
items included in the Offeror’s Checklist. 

OFFEROR’S CHECKLIST ALTCS EPD RFP #YH24-0001 
 SUBMISSION REQUIREMENT OFFEROR’S PROPOSAL 

PAGE NO. 
PART A   

A1 Offeror’s Checklist  
A2 Completed and Signed Offeror’s Intent to Bid  
A3 Completed and Signed Solicitation Offer and Acceptance Offer Page  
A4 Completed and Signed Offeror’s Bid Choice Form  
A5 Completed and Signed Solicitation Amendment(s)  

PART B SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS  

B1 
Executive Summary 

2-page limit  

B2 
Cite Contracts 

1-page limit - Utilize Template  

B3 
Health Equity Requirement 

No submission required  
B4 5-page limit  
B5 4-page limit  

B6 

6-page limit 
3 pages of narrative and up to 3, one-page sample utilization 

reports or other sample data  
B7 4-page limit  
B8 4-page limit  
B9 4-page limit  

B10 

Compliance Reviews 
No submission required unless a Non-Incumbent Offeror 

Non-Incumbent Offerors - Utilize Template  

B11 
D-SNP STAR Rating 

Utilize Template  

B12 
Oral Presentation Information 

Participant Names, Titles, and Resumes  

PART C CAPITATION AGREEMENT/ADMINISTRATIVE AND CASE 
MANAGEMENT COST COMPONENTS BID  

C1 Agreement Accepting Capitation Rates  
C2 Administrative Cost Component Bid  
C3 Case Management Cost Component Bid  
C4 Actuarial Certification  

PART D   
D1 Intent to Provide Insurance  

D2 
Representations and Certifications of Offeror and Disclosure of 

Information Instructions and Attestation  
D3 Boycott of Israel Disclosure  
D4 Moral or Religious Objections  
D5 State Only Pregnancy Terminations Agreement  
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